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lndependent Audito/s Report

To the Members of SBL Specialty Coatings Private Limited
(Formerly known as Saboo Coatings Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SBL Specialty Coatings Private Limited
(Formerly known as saboo coatings Private Limited) (the "company") which comprise the Balance sheet
as at March 3L,2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive tncome), the
Statement of Cash flows and the Statement of Changes in Equaty for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as "the financial statements").

ln our opanion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the companies Act, 2013 (,,the Act,,) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the lndian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, ("hd As") and other accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 3f, 2023, its profit and other comprehensive income, its cash flows
and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statement in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in lhe Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finoncial Stotements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the tnstitute of
Chartered Accountants of lndia ("lCAl") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act a nd the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the lCAl'S Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion.

lnformation Other than the Financial Statements and Audito/s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises in the Board's Report including Annexures to the Board's Repofr, and
Shareholde/s lnformation, but does not Include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is td read the other
information ldentified above when its becomes availa doing so, consider whether the other
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information is materially inconsistent with the flnancial statements or our knowledge obtained during

the course of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated'

lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materia I misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. we have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with

respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial

position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the

Company in accordance with the lnd AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in lndia. This

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the

provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accountinB policies; maklng

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance

of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to

continue as a Boing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditorrs Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance a bout whether the financial statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditot's repofi that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a Suarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.



' Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast siSnificant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. lf
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor,s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditols report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue
as a golng concern.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. we consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the pranned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonabry be thought to bear on our independence, and where appricabre, rerated
safeguards"

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

S S KOTHARI MEHTA
& COMPANY
CHARTEBED ACCOUNTANTS

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. u nder section 143(3xi) ofthe Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

As required by the companies (Auditor's Report) order,2ozo (,,the order,,) issued by the central
Government of lndia in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in ,,Annexure 

A,, a statemenr on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

2.
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b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

as it appears from our examination ofthose books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the statement of changes in equity including

other comprehensive income statement and Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account.

d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the lnd AS specified under Section

133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 ta ken

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of section 154(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate

Report in "Annexure 8". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness ofthe Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statement.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of the section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and accordin8 to the explanations Eiven to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as on 31't March 2023 on its financia I

position in its financial statement- Refer Note No. 35 to the financial statements

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there

were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amount which were required to be transferred, to the lnvestor Education and

Protection Fund bY the ComPanY.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)

by the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("lntermedia ries" ),

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the lntermediary shall,

whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

p'\
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security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company

from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understandinB,

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,

contain any material misstatement.

(v) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended March 37,2023.

(vi) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account
using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is

applicable to the Company with effect from April L,2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule
11(g) of Com panies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the fina ncia I year ended
March 31, 2023

For S S Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number:

\-WY
Vijay 1(rmar
Partner

000756N

Membership Number: 092571
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 10, 2023

UDIN: 230926718GS1BH3893
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ANNEXURE 'A1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Annexure as referred to in paragraph (1) 'Report on other Legal & Regulatory Requirements, of our
lndependent Auditor's Report to the members of SBt Specialty Coatings Private Limited (Formerly
known as Saboo Coatings Private Limited) on financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023,
we report that:

(i) ln respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment & lntangible assets:

a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant details of
right-of-use assets.

c)

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibre
assets.

The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property plant and
Equipment once in two years which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of
the company and the nature of its property plant and Equipment. ln accordance with this
program, Property Plant and Equipment is physically verified by the management during the
year.

The Company does not own any immovable property (other than properties where the
company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee).
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and Equipment (including right-of_
use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as
at March 3L,2o23 fot holding and benami property under the Benami rransactions
(Prohibiton) Act, 1988 (as amended in 201G) and rules made thereunder.

We have been explained by the management that the inventory (except material in transit,
which material received) has been physically verified at reasonable interval and the
procedure of physical verification of the inventory followed by the management are
reasonable in relation to the size of the company and nature of its business and no
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed.

The Company has a working capital limit in excess of Rs 5 crore sanctioned by bank based on
the security of current assets. The quarterly statement, in respect of the working capital
limits have been filed by the Company with such bank and such statement are in agreement
with the books of account of the Company for the respective periods.

(ii) a)

The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or

b)

d)

e)

b)

PT\
W#

(iii) a)

granted any loans or advances in the of loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
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firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPS) or any other parties during the year. Accordingly,

reporting under clause 3(iii) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

ln our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
investments made, guarantees provided, security given and terms and conditions of the

Brant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are, prima

facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

The Company does not have any outstanding loans and advances in the nature of loans at
the beginning of the current year nor has granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans during the year. AccordinBly, reporting under clauses 3(iiixc), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the
Order is not applicable to the company.

There is no overdue amount in respect of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted

to such companies, firms, LLPS or other parties.

The Company has not granted any loan or advance in the nature of loan which has fallen due
during the year. Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the overdue
loans/advances in nature of loan.

The Company has not granted any loan(s) or advance(s) in the nature of loan(s), which islare
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any loans
a nd investments under the provision of section 185 and 186 of the Act during the year. Accordingly,
provision of clause 3(iv) ofthe order is not applicable to the Company.

ln our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

not accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been considered as deemed deposit
within the meaning of sections 73 to 75 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Central Government has specified ma intena nce of cost records under sub-section (1) of section
148 of the Act only in respect of specified products of the Company. For such products, we have

broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made

by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under the aforesaid section, and

are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and

maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination ofthe cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

ln respect of statutory dues:

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination

of the records of the Company, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed

statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees'State lnsurance, lncome Tax, Goods

and Service Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities to the

d)

e)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

a)

extent a pplicable.



S S KOTHARI MEHTA
& COMPANY
CHARTEBED ACCOUNTANTS

According to the information and explanation Eiven to us, no undisputed amounts payable

in respect of above in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more tha n six months from

the date they became PaYable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, statutory dues referred to in sub

clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on March 31,2023, except as given below:

Name of the
statute

Nature of
dues

Period to
which amount

relates

Amount involved (Rs.

ln [akhs )*

Forum where
dispute is pending

lncome Tax

Act, 1961

lncome Tax 199s-96 2.37 Punjab & Haryana

High Court

Goods and

Service Tax

Goods and

service tax
0t-07 -2077 to

31-03-2018

o.73 Joint / Additional
commissioner

* Net of Payment

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year

in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix) a) ln our opinion, on the basis of audit procedures and according to the information and

expla nations given to us, the Company has not defa ulted in repayment of borrowing its loans

or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any

bank or financial institution or other lender.

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

has not raised any money by way of term loans during the year and did not have any term

loans outstanding at the beginning of the current year. Accordingly, reporting under clause

3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an

overall examination of the financial statements of the company, funds raised by the

Company on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any

subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the

Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any

loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or

b)

b)

d)

e)

f,--"ft
\"-k4

associate com pa n ies.
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The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(includin8 debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally)
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,

no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period

covered by our audit.

No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government for
the period covered by our audit.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made
to us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received
by the Company during the year

(xii) The Company is not a NidhiCompany and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
record ofthe Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of
the Act where applicable and deta ils of such transactions have been disclosed in the tnd AS fina ncial
statements as required by the applicable Accounting standards.

The provisions ofthe section 177 ofthe Act is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, provision
of the clause 3(xi) of the Order in so far as it relates to section 177 of the act is not applicable to
the company.

(xiv) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us Section 138 of the
Act is not applicable to the company in commensurate with the size and nature of its business:
Accordingly, clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and accordingly,
provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of
lndia Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to
the company

The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities

during the year without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the RBI as per the
b)

p,*\
w#

Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934.
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According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core
lnvestment Company (ClC) as defined in the regulations made by the RBt. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the
management of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core lnvestment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015) does not have any CtC.

(xvii) The company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as the immediately preceding
fina ncial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge ofthe plans ofthe Board
of Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company
as and when they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company does not have any
unspent amount in respect of any ongoing or other than ongoing project as at the expiry of the
financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

ForSSKothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants

registration number: 000755N

Vijay
Pa rtne r

Membership Number: 09
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 10,2023

c)

d)

ffi
UDIN: 230926718GSI8H3893
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"Annexure B" to the lndependent Auditor/s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of
our report to the Members of SBL Specialty Coatings Private Limited (Formerly known as Saboo
Coatings Private [imited)

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SBL Specialty
Coatings Private limited (Formerly known as Saboo Coatings private limited] (,,the Company,,) as of
March 31, 2023 in conjunctlon with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essentialcomponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of lnternal Financaal Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants
of lndia (lCAl). These respo ns ibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to respective Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Audito/s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
the financial statements of the company based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia
and the Sta ndards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internalfinancial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The proced ures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud

trs
ktw

or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements of the
Company.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) peftain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provlde reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised aiquisition,
use, or disposition ofthe company's assets that could have a materialeffect on the financialstatements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion, to the best of our information and accordinB to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 3L,2023, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal FinancialControls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute
of Chartered Accountants of lndia.

ForSS Kothari Mehta &Company
Chartered Accountants
Fi{m registration number:

b9/
Vijay (umar
Pa rtne r

000756N

Membership Number: 092671
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 10,2023
UDIN: 230926718GS18H3893
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i( He\p:tHt1.w#



ASSETS

SBL Specislty Coating3 Priv{t€ Linited
CIN: U24231CHl99,IPTC0l51m
BALANCf, SEf,ET AS AT ]IIARCH 31,202.3

I NoiFcurretrt lsetr
(a) Propedy, plant afld equipment
(b) Intangible assets

(c) tu ghl-of-use-assets

(d) Capiral work-in-prosress

(f) Financirl ass€ts
(i) Other financiat assers

(g) Orher non-cunent Assets
(h) Deferrei Tax Assers

Totd lotr{urrent rsets
2 Curredt rsset!

(a) Invenrories

(b) Fimociel ess€ts

(i) lnveshenrs
(i) Trade receivabtes
(ii) Cash and cash equivalenrs
(iii)BanI balances other rhan (ii) above
(iv) Other financiai ass€ts

(c) Other cunent assets

(d) Current rax assers (neo
'Totrl currctrl rcs€t!

TO-IAL ASSI]TS

EQUTTY AND LIABILTTIES
f,quity
(a) Equity share capihl
(b) OIher equity
Totsl €quity

Lisbiliti€s
Non-currcnt li.biliaies
(a) FiDancial liabilities

(i) Orher Financial Liabilities
(ii) t-ease Liabilities

(b) Provisions

Total mn-curI€nt lirbilitier

Current liabiliti€s
(a) Financial Liabilities

(, Trade payable:
(i) Toral ourstanding dues ofmjcm ent€rprises and smal
enterprises

(ii) Tolal outslaDding dues ofcreditom olher lhan micro
€nterprises and small enrerprises

' (ii) Other Iinancial tiabilities
. (iii) t ease Liabitity

(b) Other current liabililies
(c) Cunenl tax liability (net)
(d) ProvisioDs

Totrl of current lisbititi€s

58.68 53.35

45.?t

2.t
2.2

2.3

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0
ll
t2
t3

14

910.88

6.85

916_50

158.35

177.96

130r.84
13.29

1,059.86

73.51

185_84

2,760.60 2,269.60

1,831.22

2,683.59

2,T19.67

2,139.52

970.62

28.27

75.91

2,U3.93

2,452.39

2,362.s5

248.4t
1.447.91

6.33

49.70

3r.t0
lojm.m 8,629.32

1f,,269.40 10.898.92

296.00 296 00

IJ
16

t7

4.00

I,033.66

88.20

4.',?5

947.23
'79.47

I,125.86 1,011.45

19

20

2t
22

23

80.31

1,963.68

488.05

163.t I

t34.31
42.88

t2.tt

52.93

2,092.71

459.70

42.45

1t6.30

6_70

11.06

TOTAL EOUITY A\D I,I ABII ITIFS
signiricant Accoun tiDg policies ' 13i69'40 10'E98 92

tt.,"""rp".VI"e . the financiat <hlements Z4o
As per our report ofeven dale artached
For S. S. KOTHARJ MEtrTA & COtlIpANy
Chart€r€d Accountrrtr

z,asl..ts u rttst

Forend oD b€hslfofrhc Borrd ofDi.ectoE of

Membership number: 09267 I

Ftmt resistsation nunber:\,/
U.rl$t'-"-

vijry KuDtf
Pafier

Plac€: Delhi
Da&i 10..05.2023

000756N

Srijit Drsgu
Direclor

Date : 10.05.2023

P.rticurrrs . (Amount in 
' 

L'th3)

Nore _- .- t:l Arrt

DIN : 03439076



SBL Specialty Coatings Privste Limited
CIN: U2423lCHl994PTCo15l00
STATEMENT OF PROTIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3I, 2023

(Amourt in { Lakhs)
Particulars For th€ year ended

March 31,2023
For the year ended

March 31,2022

REVENUES:
ReYenue from operations

Other income

Tolal Revenue

EXPENSES:
Cost of materials consumed

Changes in inventories of finished goods, wo*-in- progess and stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expenses

Finance cost

Depreciation and amo4ization expenses

Other expens€s

Total expenses

24

25

16,635.1'7

30t.22
15,266.06

186.31

r6.936.39 15,452,37

26

27

28

29

30

3l

10,739.16

(16.06)

1,809.57

12t.29

369.93

991.66

t0;t46.45
(335.80)

1,558.45
'16.06

287.66

799.43

r4,015.55 t!,132.2s

III. Prolit before tar (I-ID
IV. Tax cxpense:

Current tax

2,920.U 2,320.12

Income tax relating to earlier year

Defened tax
Total oftax experses

Profit for the period (III-IV)

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement gains or (losses) on defined benefit obligation(net)
lncome tax effects thereof

Total Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) (Net)

Total comprehensive itrcome for the period (V+VI)
Earnings per share (t)
Basic - Par Value of t l0 per share

( t9.84) (22.80)

747.22 576.69

2,173.62 1,743.44

't63.99

3.07

604.20

(4.71)

vI.

(0.12)

0.03

(1.e0)

0.48

33

/0.091 /r drr

_ 2,173.53 r,742.02

73.43

73,43Diluted - Par Value of{ l0 per share

Signifi cant Accounting Policies

58.90

58.90
I

246The notes ale an

As per our rcpo( of even date attached
For S. S. KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

financial statemgnts

Fim's registration numb€r: 000756N

bM
Vijay (umar
Partogr

Membership number: 09267 I

Place: Delhi
Date: t0.05.2023

For and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors of
SBL Specialty Coatings Private Limited

DIN : 03439076

Place : Chandigarh

Date : 10.05.2023

#\
t(5lo.,",,1"1\w
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SBL Sp..id.y Corting. Privrr. Liniled
CIN: U242alCgr99,rmco1510.0
STATEMENT OF CASII FLOW FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED MARCE31.2023

P.Ilic!h6

A C$h Oo* lmD op.dlitrs rctivilis
Pmfit for th. p..iod (B€loru rar)
Adjulhenr! to rccor.ite tr€r prcfit to ner.r[ by op.Erirg ..tivili6
D.pr4iarron & doniaron €xpense

Polirion for doubful debts (.et of.eor€Ed)
Bad d.hs WOfI
?rov.son for non movins srocks

Ner t sV (sain) on sat. of propeiy, pltul ad equipmmr
Dc Capiblis.d Nt ch&ged b repair
N.t Los / Gan) oi aeunt of foreign €xchase 0uctulrion
P.ovision no longer requned wrls b&&

UnBidiigofi e'esl on sunry deposn
N.r c&n &om invslment in liquid funds of nutu l funds
Fair Elue gain o. ,nve henrs ofmutual tunds

Op.ntitrg prcfii beforc rorki4g crpiiot cnrngc

(InqeeY d@r€e in iitenbnq
(Lc.eeY dcr.4 in rade r@,vabcs
(hcr€eY der@ D short-&m loas
(t .r@)/ de,!& in other tnaciat cur6r asB
(Iicr€&y d6'ee i. olhe. cutror 6*r,
(inr.ey der€s o non cure.t fineci.l asset - lona-lm lMs
(bc,e&)/ daree in othe. nonrureni 6e6' (Der€e! rnc'e4 rn lona tm ed Shod tem pros!,or
lDeree/ ancr.e in othe non cureil fi.aciat tiabiliri*
(De.ceMncree in h.de payabte

(D@y incr@ in orhr fin&cial cuftenr liabihies
iDereej/,nci.a 

'n 
orhe, cuned r,sb,t ,e!

C![ (u..d i,ytmD op.drio.!

Net .at llo* (ur.d inyfmD op.dlitra a.rivirid

D Cah ltor frcn i.v.(iag rcrivirid
Expoditu.e on prop€.ty, pl4l &d equipnent including CWIP
Exp€nditue on intansible fixed a$er!
Ir@ds fiom sale of liqud rlnds of nurd nrds
Purch& ofliqdd tun.ts ofmuru.t fuds
h.om. fron rnv.st not in lquid funds ormduat funds
Prcc€.ds fron propeny, plat md equipment Ellng
Pr&€eds fron narunry ofrem depos( wirh bdrrs
lnvGrment in l.m deposn wft b ks
Inr€rcs @ived

N.t uh [m fionv (u!.d in) iNdrins .criritiB
C C.rh rlop lmr fir.n.irg.crivitia

PayDmt of lee lEbihiet

N.t orl FIow frcd/ (ut.d i.) 6nmci.s r.liviiis
N.. in.r. {d-r8.) in .r.h md .r.h .quiv.l..t (A+B+C)
, Cash 6d cash.quivalol al lhe begiining oflh€ )s

Cdh .d .sh .quiv.tetr. rt tte €trd offt. yar
C{r ;d o.t .q{iv.h!('

For S. S. (OTII{RMEHTA & COlrpANy

(710 65) (622 08)
2,090.10 l, |t,Et

2,920 U

169 93
(2r.15)

745

054
0.87

0.41

(0 98)

12129
(4.84)

008.92)
123.59)

(1,!0 06)

2,]20.t2

24166
7.45

(l 03)
(2@)
76.6
(4.e)

{43.45)
(r?.04)

(r09.50)
3,121.19

192.7t
(382.r1\

oao
( .2tt
(33.7s'
(4.26)

9.66
(0.75)

(r03.23)

28.35

18.0t

2,ArO.15

2Jr3.5a

049.58)
,--4,

4.15

16.93

(42.2t'
(5r 04)
(r lr)

(5194)

52.25

8ol
2,036.E9

(47O 87)
(l0.or)

2"39t.90
(2,551.08)

104.92

1.97

1,562.93

(1,w2.52'
11132

1265.15)

0.5E)
783 49

(441s 15t
43 45

0.55

1,u5.08

0,557.28)

(l]626)

l,89t.t I
244 4t

Porrtrd on b€h.lfofrh. Borrd ofDir.ctoE o

(121.29) (?60'
(257.5s) 01,1.7?)

(lr8.7l)

(1,00199)

|,252 40
2.139-52

t13.9t
o.6t

:Hffi/
Mehbsship nunbs 092671

Daler I005 2021

sB\.spdirtiy Co.rios priv.r. Li4ir.d

d&-t^-12
Anil Kumrrntehr.rE I

000756N

A3 p.r ou Epo.t of w@ dar. ada.h.d

#\
l( '*b* ].z\#



SBL Specialty Coatings privrte Limiterl
CIN: t 242JlCIt l994pTCol5t00
STATE]IIENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THtr YEAR ENDtrD MARCH 3I, 2023

(a) Itquiay share capital
For the Ycar ended Mrrch 31,2023

Equity shares oflNR l0 each issu€d, subscrib€d and fully paid

At April 01, 2022

Changes in equity share capital due to prior period enors
Restated Balance as at April0l,2021
Changes in equity share capital during the current year
At luarch 31,2023

For the Ycar ended ltfarch f,1, 2022

Equity shares ofINR l0 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
At April 01, 2021

Cha[ges in equity share capital due to prior period errors
Restaled Balance as at April0l,2021
Changes in equify share capital during the curent lcar
At Nlarch 31, 2022

b, Other Equity

2,960,000 296,00

2,960,000 296.00-

_ 2,960.000 296.00

2,960,000

2,960,000

296.00

296.00

Balancc as at April 1,2021

Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the yerr

Bahnce as et Merch 31, 2022

Profit for the period
Other compreheruive income for the year
Tolal comprehetrsivc income.for lhe year

2,t73.62
2,1'13.62

1,713.44 1,143.44
o.42) (1.42)

1,742.02 1,742.02

Brlance as at ll{arch J1,202J
Signfi cantAccouniingTotiiics-
lr" *"..p-ytrg 

""," f - financial stalemenb 246

As per our report ofeven date attached
For S. S. KOTHARI MEETA & COMPANY
Chtrtered Accountetrts For and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectom of
\irm's registratiorl,number:to,^t(M
vijay Xfmrr

000756N

Partner

Membe$hip number: 092671

Place: Delhi
Date: I0.05.2023 Place : Chandigarh

Date : 10.05.2023

p\
(-%#9

Anll Kumer Mehrotre

N,.ber of .har". --Sf,iiiiGi-

_ 2,960,000 2S6.00

SBL Specirlty Cortings Limited
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SBL Sp$i.lty Co.lina3 priv.r. Limil.d
cIN: U2ll23tCHl994P[COt5l(x)
NOTES IO IINANCIAL SIATf,MENTS FOR TIiE YIAR f,NDED MARCII 3I, 2023

3 Olh.r fre.i.l &.r.

A"r t
Cri.d i u6ir.d 6r
BMI d.positr Muring lid l2 monlh, from ,.portin* oenod
saunry d€posirs

,l ott.r nor .!ftnr .$.a!

12190 ll5 02
6t 9,{

135,34 t7?.96

A! rr A!.t

Prepard expens€s 5190 5033

53.63

5(rl D€t rr.d r.rrre6& tirbitiriarn,r
*..<bU'''

atr. n;i -----_____;;

D.a.ftd br titbiliria (.)
A@l@&d depei.rio,

D.tftd t r &r,{b)
D.Ierea Tu Ar*! es,rs on .@ur ot€rEns
dlohbt. for t r purpcg s,ta pld u/s 4til

D.t Nd trt (hDititidy&.. (.)
h Oti.r CoEp..[divt lr.or.
D.Lrrd ,t tirbiu.i. (.)
Ot[4 throush olnd onpFlsbiv. incm.
D.LErd .r .!.6 (D)
oln€6 fireud olna @rprcl.nsive hene

D.f.i.d rrr &rr0nDilrid)
N.t d.f.rEd i.r &.r0nb iry)

5(b) leo..ilirliotr of t t dDoG .!d th. ..@uri.s pretit Eultiptid by hdirt doo€ric llr db

27.61 253s -----_--;;t

a7r2 2&08 5;r

25 25

50.2a

1-,i:.3-:, Ildg e sl.Juiory in@m€ r2x 6re of 2e2o.u -----'- iii
25. I 614 It t Mtnr^ 2n22 :25. I 6y.f
Pd@lal.t'tuq.6 d...ins i,lfu. nx Gr!@l
Ott6 mu.dLJh! dieXohE
PrGvioB ya.djBrbar3

N.t .fedv. ixd. rrt
r.@.. t r .rD@. it ni.d i ll. rr.r.o.t .a

P@ioB lar.djurodr

11512 J3t.93

2021
(4.7r)

t4.94
1.O7

(162) t22so)
___EEl__qq!L

(22 80)

&-*ru@L tMrrdal r tlBn NR 36 9o. py.[vR ts,.ot)

5369J
1323

83r.J7
55 70

415.7a

20.50

'Ircone d\ ar. fo rh€ Ay 2022-21 h6 ben op.ed s per s*tio. I l5BdA @22y. s d€.d.! by Thc FiMe acl 2o2o

763.99

09.8,{)
41t

ln liauid 6nds ofmurul tuftts

Tra& @MitE - retoid pdiB

=-i*ffiffi
t.!Jt.22 t.02J.91

. ---:**-------- *



Brtl-u, Io. Irr& rdiy.Dk :
Udclr4 gtriL.d good

T..d. Reiyi6l6 *nih hrE sulrd rrc in oEdir n!\
Trid. R*ivlhl6 - dldir io!.Ial

Inp.i|,*d .nGre (.lloi.E lor b.d rd doubrtut it bB)

TE& Rei[bl6 enn:[ i.w rioifd i]@ m ciEdir rist
Tri& n&inbl6 . s!di! ElPlir.d

Tn& E.iv.bld A!.i.g S.r.d*

20.?3

2,,.t!1

20.r1 t2.lt

Ar I JI Mr.l 20Zl

Undrlsr.d Ti& latutrk - eiiA trE.iqif|d i@

Udi.roLd Tr* @irdL s.dir 
'q.iEdDi{@d Tnd. eirtr6 - dikld !o.d

Di4d.d Tr.d. E 1616 *niSbErisrifdi@i.

t $r!.d Td. @iv.[lo - glni iq.iEn
;
I12

TEd. Eiut!. ft m-irrd6 6dibS !d & laErlt d tu of l0 b $ da6.. OId blr d r[E lt,rEd @ir!bL. siid IEt d. s F edir Es.gr.d si6 ri. oi@.

9 Crh rd Csh.quivd.n&

-O. otror .@u,E
-D€p.iits nrh onsi@l ruru.iiy ofle $a. rnre mo.thj

Tolrl

l0 Br[ Ad.n6 orn.r l[r .r.n ud ..dr f,quivddr,

t73.91

t,965.00

0.61

Ll39A2

241-aO

0.61

' Lie. neked for bint g@&l*

Od.r fim.id s*r!- CrI@t

3.62 114

910.62 1111.91

rnlg6t erued o. 6xen d€pcit

u Orh.r .ur..l .rkr! (U6eu.d .on,id.rd s@d, ut.s olh.Bir. 3r.t.d)

,43

21,9 ,€.G

D&olqt Tn& Eirlk - sti:L t E riSrrr-n i]El@ ir

DBFr.dTn&eir.6b .Etirrrp.irod



SBL Specialty Coatings Privrta Limited
CIN: U2423lCHl994PTC0I5lm,
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMINTS FOR THf, YE-{R ENDED III,{RCH 3I,2023

14 Shrr€capitrl
(Amoutrt in t Ixkh, (Amount ip t Lskhs)

Particuhrs Mrrch 31,2023 Ilrrch 31,2022

Amourt Number ofshrres Amoutrt

Equity shares ofRs l0 esch

Isu€d, subccriM rtrd p.id up
Equity shares ofRs. l0 each fuly paid up

At the begi ing oftho y€rr
Add: Issued during the ye3r

At rhe etrd of the yerr

5,000,000 500.00 5,000,000 500.00

s,{m,{mo 50o.m 5,000,000 500.00

2,960,000 2,960,000 296.00296.00

1,960,000 296.m 2,960,000 296.00

- TcrmJRight! rtrrchd to clrs! ofrh{.e.
Th€ Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a p6r value of { I 0 each. Hol&r of each Equity Sharc is entitled to one vote p€r shaiE- The Company d€clarcs and pays

dividends in Indian rupe€s. The dividend proposed by lhe Board ofDirectors is subje.l lo th€ approval oflhe shdeholdec in the ensuing Amual General Meeting, except in cas€ of
inlerim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, th€ hold€rs of equity shares will b€ entitled to receive remsining ass€ts of the Compony, after distibution of all

prefere ial amouds. The dislribulion will be in proponion to the nmber ofequity shares held by lhe shareholders.

As ,t Mrrch 31.2023 A! rt March 31,2022
Pa.ticuhru Numb€r ofsh,res % holg!!C_ICg!gj!!gg___

s9y" 1,sss,9n 999y
- ShriAniruddha Sen (Drreclo,
- ShriSriJit Dasgupra (Direclo,

10.00

10.00

o.00sy, 10.00 0.N50/o

o.Ns% t0.00 0.005%

date is NIL
14 (b) Equi, Shares calls unpaid by dir€ctors and officers ofthe company. NIL
14 (c) There are m Bonus Sbares is$ed for consideralion other th,j1 c{sh & Shar€ bought bact duing the p€riod of five yeir inmediately pre.eding the year

14 (d) D€iails ofshareholdc$ holdiry more than 5% shares oflhe Company

As el Nhrch 31,2023 As rt Nlarch 31.2022
PrrricubE Number of sh.r€. % holding Nrmb€roflhrre. %tolding

.,{.,
- Berger Paints India Limit€d
Totrl

2,959,980 99.ryo 2,959,980 99.990/o

2,959,980 99.99y. 2,959,9EO 99.99L

repres€nis bolh legal ad beneficial ownership of shar€s

E. Detdl! of rhrre. h.ld bi PromoaeB

tu on M.rchJl.2O2J

S. No.
bcgitrtring of

Ch.nge du.ing rhe ye.

Equity shes ofINR l0 e&h firtly paid 2,959,980 2,959,980 99.9v/,

- Sltri Aniroddfia S.n l0 l0 0-005./o

- Shri Srijil Dssgupta l0 l0 0.005.,1

2,960,ooo 2,960,{X)0 100 00.1

2022

S. No.
b.gindrg of

Chrng. drring ah. y.!r

Equity stes ofINR l0 .&h tuIy paid 2,959,9E0 2,959,980 99.9v

o.@5c

0.00502

l0 l0

- Shri S.ijit Dssu a l0 l0

2,960,0{Xt 2,960,000 100.00"/o

#ru
t\r*w)3\#$fl^rfl"ytu-t^ 

s^r-



SBL Spei.ltr Co.rinsr Pnv . Linir.rl
CrN: U24BrCllr99,rPrC0r5100

l( 0lll.r Fidn id li.bilitid:Notr Cuftnr

Mrn[ll-202] MtEtJl.20t2
CMi.d rr ..orti'sl qt

16 L.e Lnbiitid: Notr Cum

17 Proviion:: NonCnnutLi.biliri.s

ftolisio6 for L6v. q6hn l
Prclisio6 60r cEruiry (Rcf.r nor. no 32)

Alrt Ar..
M!fti31.2011 Mrmlr3l.1012

tu ttl Mrrda)Z}
Ij.lilLddEr Nc&tnd. Iallr I l.2y-r 2l1ts Mm.tr3ra6 T.tl

D.rrL..

(i) Tor.l @Erjldins dB of miqq sndl &d odim angpris ( Efa nor. m. 16)
(i, Tor,l oulsLtrdig du6 ofcr.ditoa otns thd 6iqo ancAds dd fidl araDriE

. t ddd .Mr p.r.tL L rdtnd prri. a 19.,15 blf,. (P.YI 173.,{ ltltu)

rtuL Drythrq A!(i.s s.r.drL

. roir - - EoJl

- lJ0.l6l l963Ja

D.r.hLn yar

TdI dr.d4 d- oaoiscraFiE ed ell alsr.is

Tdd orr..di* &6 oasla,rn odr rir rim deEn-

T.n Fy.tLcrdldlrid cdrlly..dd o 3M0 d.r.leE
' Nd&trl.F!!ln?a.rb.lGrtii.u1.baFeldnE{{tEart[6.r.na.

u OO! f[tid lnHti+ clr€a

Tod oe-drrr dE oaDieo deris ud e.ll arer.is

TdI i,@ldirs ds oacqlirc! odE 6r riqn ar.,Fis

52.r3 52,94

2!9L74

Ad'r.d 6rloy- li.b&r6

20 l* Lirbliliir C.ror

#\
?{ rueilpnr,, l?\#M^^il-\tu{}^ \,,2-

ll&10 19.47

t,9616a 2,09?11
2.t{3.99 2,tt5.70

22t.7a 156.24

26612 103.46



2l Orh.rcuftntlhbiliti.!

33?
ll.l,f,t

Prrricul.n A! Ar rr

124.@ 112.24

U-.2-

A!.r a!.r



SDL Sp.{irlty Cortingi Priv.r. Limited
CIN: U242JlCH199:lPTC0I5l00
NOTESTO TINANCTAL STATf,N1ENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH]I,2023

2,1 R.v.nu. ftub op.rrtiom

z4.t 
For thcy..r..dcd For th. y.f.d.d

17,205.44 15,775.76
O$.. op.ntiog nr.nue

L!s: Disui on etes

11.26 38.60
33.35

17,240.09 l5.El:136

Revenue ftom iale ofSoods is r@gei*d on tranfer ofonlrol in dle goods ro custoners ar a poi of iime by perliollme of obliSarion loweds delivery or s ps cu$om€rs
iNtructions.

Fo.ab./a..rd.d rd atc y..r.!d..t

rrrr6tirc@. ont! r d.postu 
M'r'i3l'20!J M'r'h3l''022

140.(x 109_50
Fsn rdu. griD o nuturl frnd invctucni 23.59 17.(x
Unwidirg ofinl66t on se.urity deposir

Cah on srte of mutual fund
Foreisr exchanse sah (neo
Liabilili6 & lonSd rcqun€d wittm back
P.ovisions fo. Doubrful debts no lonser require( witttr b&k
Mislaneou Inome

26 Cdtofnw Dri..i.t .o um.d

4_U 4.64

10E.92 43.45

- 1.03

0.98 2.09
2t.15 4.s6
1.68 4.0o

For rh. y..r.rd.d ro. th. y..r.6d.d

Pa.khe Mal6ial'Consmed

Cortofa.t ri.L on um.ir

Ct.tr86 i. inv.tr.o.i.. offitrirh.d good!, work ir piotr... .rd !to.k-i.-rrrd.

(677.08) (t8157)
9T/LA 9r53lt

55-m 47.t5
914.0t All.lJ
(53 6.ll
915.t{ tt2.60

lqB9.l6 10,7{6.45

881.57
q618.53

14L6A
10,003.74

(1,)

Net (In.rc$.) / D.cr. .

435.78 $752
6l0.tE

t,1,66.t6 ?30.J6

536.95 $5]a
545 )1

-

1.0E2.2! t.066.16

o6.oct 6rs.rot

e^2
ffiilft\p



SBL Sp.cialay Co.dqr PriE.. Libit d
CINr U242:rlCHl99aPTC0l5l0O
NOTES TO rINAIICIAL STATEMANTS F1OR TIIE YEAR EI\IDED MA.RCII JI, 202:}

2t f,bpby.. b6.trt qpox
(ADout i! < Irkt!)

P.rrhd.It ror.h. y.$.rd.d Io. .h. y....!rd.d

Conrribution ro prcr'idar md or[er 6uds
Sdrwdfa€ expos

E1.95 83_25

61.83 17 94

For th. y.!r.nd.d Fo. th. yor.nd.d

Inter€.t oo le3!. liabilitid

Tot l

Anortization of Rigtt lo e of aasds (Note 2.2)
Anodz,lion ofi agibl€ B!€rs (Not 2.|)

Ior rh.y..r.ad.d For ah. y..r md.d

I t9.94

8 t.63
34.36
19.r3

E.E9 7.71

10.90 a.97

16.94 a-64
169_94 109.66

29.64 t2.34
41.42 72.96

2.59 8.20

5.10 3.60
0.54

Commplion of rto.6 ad spde p.ns
Repai6 to pl&t &d m&[jnery
Rcpai admai oe@ othss

Adv€rlis€mar ed sal€s promotion .xpenses

Pa}tart ro alditm tefer nore no. 40. I )
to$ otr sder'dis.aid ofpoperty, planr d eguipddr and inragible an€ts
L.gal & p.ofNiorrl expei!€s
Prcvision for doobtfi Debt!
Palm.d for CSR ( r.fs NoIe 3l.l)
Fo.eig .xchoge gain (nct)

Vehiclc Rming & Ex?ellg

Mi*Uon@E.xrres

94.24

47.43

I l.l5
t8.76

34.08

44m
0.41

t4.44

7.45

tE.

11.73

t2_0t

37 -@

13.01

17 76

lr.rliL oICSR.!p.ndi.un
lt.l ,l! !t a! rr

M.fth.ll,20r3 Mrrch3t.2022
,) c..*

Amount spat dnirg th. year .adiry on 3 lMarch 2023 |

Con$ructiqJ&quilitiotr of uy [sset
O,t purpoF ottq ttd (i) above.

b)

')i,

c) Amoul sp€trt duirg dl€ y@ mdiry on 3 I March 2022:
i) Cotrfiuctio/&quisitionofeyarset
n) On p!,poses od'a tte (i) abov..

d) D€t ils rcloled to sp.nr / unspe obtigalioN:
i) Cotrlribution ro I'ubuc Trusl
n) Cotributioir lo Chsirable Trust
in) Un5?€nt dout h rclarion ro:

- Onsoiry projecr

- Otlctlhd onSoing projecr

hot_ Y.t ro b. p.id ir..* Tor.t

4{m - 44

Io..rl- Y.r b b. prkl in.!h Tohl

J7 09 llo9

A, rr M.rl3l,20lJ A! Mrh llr 2Or2

' Contibution of a44.00 La$s (202 l-22 I 37.09 tikhs) *hic.t includ€s Rs 2.60 Lal[s for hos?iiatt Rs 16.72 L^'tfis for
od'.rs, Rs 2.25k1tu for cirl child ca!$ ed Rs 22.44tatts to [T, RopE dd nT Rurt@ for ie owship programs. e"Rrrc

:( ruer@n 
J!

\#4S-,;,--

I,Elt9.57 1,55&45

0.05 0.16
t19.97 69_41

t-27 5.49

12t.29 76.06

991.66 799.4'



SBL Spci.lty Co.rirgr Priv.t. LiEit.d
CIN: U2a23lCEr99artc0l5l00

3t EDployc A.n.filt Obligrtion

(I) D.fin.d b.n.6t phN - .r D.r rcturi.l v,ltr.rion
(.) Gnluiry (Futrd.d)
(i)The followiig table sumMiz6 rbe compo,ois of.er benetu qp€n* rHgniz.d in rhe St.r@.t ofPrcft &d loss and OCI a.d rn nni.d sl,lus.d mounts
r@gniad in fi. Bdee Sh.d

P.ni.ohd
Ch.trg6 i! rh. p4nt yrlu. oa d.fu.d b.tr.f[ oDlie.tion
P@it vd@ of d.6r.d ba.ft ot'ligrion d !t ya begimiig

(An@nr i! I Ltls)
Ar.a At.a

M.rch 31,2OIt M.nL 31,2022

21714
2081
15.29

(4.r6)

246.t3
22.94

17.68

(2_74)

1.76

02.55)
21L73

212.t4
2Lt8

o.09)
10.9t
11.94

o2.55)
txL$

271.2a

322_@

(.r.34

236.80

rr6t

(l7l)
20.m
6.70

(7.r0)
212-ta

246.t3
21214
(26.01)

-Acrui.l GriNlbs diniig n'on churgd ir d.msnphic

-A€lui'l G.iN),lo!s eiing Aon cldsd in 6mi,l

-A.luari.l GrilslaGs sidrs &om .h.rs6 io dpdicM
.dju{@i!

Pltgt v.t!. ol &im.d bd.6t oDli!.tiu r ya..nd

Chr.gd i. iir r.h. .r r{.. .s.t!
r& v.lu. ofPlu A$ds s sr y@ bcgiming

4.35
(7.30)

a6.tt

-P\.tum on DI& 8s.rr (qcludi4 .mu ircluded in ret Interesr

Emplolds Contibulio.
Emplors dir.d ho.tl plrnoni

F.ir V.rE of Pt ! Alrrt r .r yor dd

ArNrlt tdo!.i.rt in tf,. Ddr.e Shdr
Pren vde ofd.6!od ba.fit obligarion d ln. yd od
F.ii VJE of thc PL, A!.d! a,! rhe yd axl
Lnb ity(An i) R6olnild itr rh. B.lu@ Shat

ElD.r Eognir.d i. rh Srlrd.ri orrrcIit rd L$:

N.t rdE d Cod(Irm)

N.r Co r@S.it d ir ll. Sr!l@.!t of Pmfit t.d L,t

ElFe Roliir.d i! t!. Orl.r CoDpr.t.nrir. bc.o.:
Rqn..u@.t! GriB)1()s

N.tcd.&.o!.ard iIrn Sht d..rolPreirrndt $

(ii) IlE pdripal asmprioN u*d in det.mining graruty obtigiriotu for th. Comp.ry,j dd sa lnom h.low

SigniaE.rr Acirri, Aruoprio

M.fth31,2013 M.rhll,202,

M.8131,2023 M.fth!l,2or2

2291
(3 50)

19..[

012

1.50/.

20 8t

12.r6)

lcas

1.90

tta5

Indim A.sred Liv6 ldi& AsEd Liv6

Mor,.,i,yR.,. t"'Tff:l;',ll 
'"'lr,;ffi:Fuiue Salry IEr.e (%) 1.vr/, 1ut/.

Th. ediml.s of tulr. slarv iM.&s consids.d in actueial valudo  tale a@unr of inlladotl sjo.ity, p(omotion md oth€r rddrt factos, sch 6 $pply Md ddDmd
in rh€ dplorm.nr @tet

AsMptioN reSedinB tuture nonality exp€tioe &e *t in modde wnh lhe publirhed dllisti.s by lnc Life l.sree co,lo.arion of Indisfu disu.r i.r. is bsed o, 1h. sovemme s@rities yierd
The Coopmy 6ss thee ssunprioos wirh ns projecied long-tm pltu ofSrovrh dd pr@.tqi indusq ,iud.rds pru

I( ,,adaar.,, lE\#e"2-



(iii) Mior qlcsory ofPh. Asras oflhe fair v.tue ofrh. tolst pld ets e€ 6 fouow!:

Itrv6tn Erl quor.d ir r.riv. Drrt tt:
QDtcd €qniry iN6ltr.r!
Meufrdud.s ud @n!ffi prcdud Etor

C.rt .rd 6h.qdv.hrtt

Bonds tsed by Indis Sovmr
Prop€.ty
Ai$r undd slErc of ilslm

(ivlA qu.ntititiE se.sitivity analyris for rigniticant .ssumption a, at March 31,2023 ii.s shdn b.t

t@/.

W.i t1,2022
Dlrcdna..t.

lrh.rc.s. lX d..r..t
It l..th3) Ft.lt'd

to@,

lmpact on deincd benefit obtigation

lmpacton defin.d ben.fit obti8.rion

March 31" 202!
Discount r.t.

1%lnc.eare l%decreai€
lr Larhr) ltrakhr)

(20.88) 23.80

M.rch31.2023
tut!re 5rlary tn.rca*

l%inqeasc 1% d.creare
{r Lakhd F Larhr)

{1s.87}

(19.13)

Mar.h 31,2022
Fqtur. 5.1ary t.cr..s.

l%ir.reai. tX der..s.
(r Lalhr) {llrrnil

20 4a

tmploy.€Tunover
1%lncreare 1% dc.r.ase

Employee Turnover
lxlr'cr€a{ 1r decrease
(<brhsl {ibh's)

rmpa.t on defn.d be nent o btigation {0,46) 0.53 {.03 O_t3

s'ntitivitv forsiSnificanl.cto.ri.lasumptions is computed by varying one .ctua ri.l a$umption used for the varu.tion o, the defined b.nerit obtigation by on.

SlTllii:ii?llf"i'i,l',i"1lactla'iarassumptio'sconstant'Trem.thodsandtvpesor.'5umptio*Gedi;prcpa ne,res.cnsitivitvanarvsisaiinotcrunec

{.) &red on irtercst r.t r of sovernment bohds
(b) Br3!d on maneg.ment! estimate

Sin.ethe.mployeesgratuityfu.d k a defined benefit phn the l,.bitity to be prdided wil be sob]iect to int€rest rate risk since th. future valuation of benefitdepeids upon th€yietd orgov.rnment bonds for matching oaturities

(vl) Deffn.d 8.n.fi uabltty and Emptoy€r Contribudons
srnce the emplovee3Sratuitv fund i5 

' defined ben'l'r plan maintained by Life rnsu.nce corpo-tion ofrndia the r.rurn is generated from a p@rofass.tsinwrted by theh and a.ydefi.it in th. tiabitity and return on ptan.$ets is fuided by th€ Comp.ny on a yeany ba3is

lvii)lh 201&19, the Company erpects to convibute Rs 30 rikhs (March 31,2023: F5 31Lrkh) ro chtui'
(viii) M.turlty protite of the .t€fned beneflr obtig.tio.

{r Lahs) lrl.alih')

wci8htcdAv.6g. duration ofth. defi.ed benetit obltgation

tupecred b.Nfit paym€nt, for rhe year .ndins
Not L!!e.thao 1ve.r
L.terthan t ye.rand tlot hter rhan 5 yee6

(ll) oerlred conrrtbution pt.ns

Provrdent.nd F.Drtv pension rund (appt(.6te to.etis,bt.
emprovees who* prdidenr Iund acoun15 .r. m.,nt! ined
wrth rhe R.S,onatproudenr Fund Cohmisioner)

M.rd 31,202:t M.r.i 3r" 2022

During the v'ar' the comp"v hrs re@snised the fo'6qing 
'mou.ts in the statement ofprorit.nd Lo$ tor defined contibution pransl

16.12

99.75

@.20

zo22-2'
74,96

14.81

92.91

424,A6

2023-24

75.53p,\
{(r.ule", l?

\,*4



SBL Spei.lty Co.ling Priv.L LiEn d
CIN: U2423lCIIl94lPf C015lm

3r E.miIg. P.r St.rc (EPS)

Ihe fouowiis rco6; th. in@i. ed shd€ .hl! ued in the bsrc od dilur.d EpS @mput riotu

1r) Nd Profit for Bl.ulation orB6ic Md Drtuled !.hras p€r sh{c (r) (a in Ldn:)
(n) W.ishred ar.Es. .mbs of sh{6 (tr)

(m) E 6rs pa equity shee Inomiml varue or a r o ps sh&.1 (D(tr)l

34 Co.ri.gor tidilirie & .ommno..t {io rh. .i.nr not DFlid.iI fo.)

P.rli.uhd
2O2a 2022

2,t73.62

73.4'
7r.43

2,9@,@

t8 90
53.90

,, E umred med oI60uB rtunm8 ro be e\{ured on up,utap€ndrtue M{t nor p@Uded aor (ner ot

b, Cddns.nl Lirbnni6
(i) chitu lgai6t th. c.hpey not @tnowl€ds.d 6 debis

In@n€ rex tiahility rlEi tuy &isc u r6pet of @nc6 m dispurE
Arr€al b€forc th€ IoDl / Add,lD.d @mmissono , csds &d stu,@ T* .s!i.sr suma,y Orde. No.276 dald 31. t 0 2022 ea Order No
zDofto220t241E d^d 

'I 
to.2o22

.. Out.rrding B.nk gurnrLB

35 Tnd. Rft .iv.blrrAdvr..r

t,91t.63

o76
to.u 3.5t

]#;ffi.H:,::ll5*.;j,?"ifr11?,,,[j:jlff:dlo.hEbmrlt€.,Intheopiniono.dtMmgm..l,ourofd*'le'smomnnsloRl
36 TE Mi.rn, Srrll D'l M.liuD rjr.rpfns D.v.topm.nt {MsMf,D) A.r, 2006

ffi"T*:fflH:11*"ff.ffi,:ffif,S##"H#,ff?#::::,y[,;._g'-,M.dimEnt rpris*Dd.ropnarA42006hav.di$ros€dns. Disrosur6sr.qui..dby

uilrrolm ud.r 
'i. v i.m. sft,n -a n.ai,. .,r..p.i,- o,-aopiEiii-0o6iiJiiii.di

ud.r.o l[..rt... rn. CoDprn, h.r r.(.iv.d inrim{iotr tron rh. ruppti.n r.r.rdins;.n rrrtu

lad. p.'.b16 dc nm im.r6l h@iry ed u; nomaly *rd.d on 45_60 days

P.ituipi .ll1@l r@inins up.id { rle 6d of th. yE
Inta6r du. dE@ mining unp.i.r .r 1h. ad of th. y@

Dd5d p.ynal of Prin ip.t ,tMt p.id b.roid lppoiiLd &t. dung rh. arirc 6nei, yd
InlGr ..tudly p.id uds Scd'o. t 6 ot !h. Aq du,Dg rhe .nrr. e@urns J.EAl@nr of t cGr d* ed Fy.!t. for rh€ Fnod otd.iy ,n rutxDB dr. F'rMr l$tnct h!v. betr pdd bu
Derqrd u. rppo' .d day dui,8 $. y{, bur slnour rddins mB6r epe,6ed uDd.r rhR Ad
An@nroft GGr d* od payabt. t rh. Fflod {rts. pnnc,p.t hs hdr p{d bur ,ntad mdd lh.
MSMED Ad .d p!'d)

IncG! .@.d -d lfunhs u.p6d d llc od of rh€ y@
Th. uMr oafdn; ola6. lgfunhs .tu. ud p.Fbt. sn h ,!..€drns y6, u.rit uc[ dr. qn6 dGrnc6l dE a .bov. r.acndty prd !o rt. lroo ud stu Enrdpfls for lhe purDos. ofd,sloll.rca dcdudibl. qpadnur. udd S..rion 23 ofdis A.,
T.! .nd.odiriEotlt rDd.rnd.p.y.btB:

*:, 529:

P.ni.uLE rer -d.d M.*h ra Yd;; ;-iG;i:i



SBL Sp..irtry Co.ti4r Priv.L Lioir.d
cIN: U2,rZ3lCII99.IPICo[lm

37 Di..ro$E in Ep.d of R.tr&d Prdi6 pu.smt to tnd AS tl

Lin olR.L&d P.rti6

I. PrMr ud Subridiiy Cmp.ni.:
B.EEr Painrs hdjr Linir.d
BdBd tler Wood C@ti,Es P* r, ,Bdgrror.

I. Ort r r.J,r.d Drri$ilf, rhoE trsr..ior hrv. t Ln p1... durins.h. yar:

l) r..y Mro!@i ?.rurd

Mr. X-*r,nip Siqh Dti!3B

b) E .rprir d.r ,hi.[ KMP'3 [,y. +afi.d inll|xrt.
N.ft ofr.Lt.d p.ni.
a€e!. P.ints Banslad6i Lkl
KSD Visio REIEh LI-P

' Bcigcr &rls Cdi4! Pr & liniLd

Edily.ddLdty t y Mlauil l6ud
Eidy cdi,dLd hy r.!ry rrd.ari.l M
Eniy.ddLdt!, t , M.quil Pqrod

A. Duiins rlE ysr th. folovitrs tr:r.tiod *.ft.xri{.u. *ith lh. ElrLd prrtiB i! tt ord!.ry cour of bui4$:

{ Ml ir a L.lt!)

ad rt yuod.d I.o. rh yar d.Ld
Mmh 3r. 2023 Mr.i J1, ro22

(ii) PEc[le olcods .,n SRic

(iij) kyM.&gqd Pdud CeD@lhd

sBL spdidry Co.ri!! PriYd. LiDiLd
CIN: U2,la]lCElg9aPIC0rilU)

B. E.l.€ oltr.rdirt r rL td dd:

B€qer Ptuts Indin LiniLd
Berger tl6e Wood Cdi4, A/r. tld. -BaBal@
B€rger Bdrs CdiE Pnr6&Lirnrd

B€eer Patu! Indi: Limind
B€'sn BEtdcdingr Pnht LiEird

Bqrd P.inr Iidi LioiLd
Bqd BcId Coairy ?iil.rc timit d

Deas t.id, Inta l-ihi.d
DdE6 B.dG C&Iiry Pnva& l,imild

496-53 36 25

1993 65.60

?9.9t 61.60

Fo.rhr..rdlH for tt. yo 6d.d
Md.l3l.202j lrtr.[31.2022

0.17

39.29

r,!2
0t J5I

173 30

t9.62t17.5t
2.11

''In tupli.e *rS rt€ p@nirc of d€ IND AS I canp3drc fuuG oa lan 

'qc 
@ b t! pdilj \rrh Bfn b 6. p]]jsdin of thc 6@inl si,l,fu of rlc q,Ill4.-

I!!s!
a) Tem ai diirim of lllJlsim *iih eLdt DdE:
Tt€ sal6 b.rd pxr.lBB 6m d.r.d FniB e nu& 6 !m qruiv.lsn @ dB.h. D|Mn in m r lagll t:l,fu. Outbdq b6i2lB, rhe ]s<d & 'l@ed ad id.r61arc.rd edffirt c6 h€$
qoepr s oin Nie nErior.d

U^2

531
$lrl 46.29

$2t
16t.12 

'69.511

119.6a 19.6'



SBL Specialty Coatings Priyate Limited
CIN: U24231CHl994PTC0l5l00

38 Ratio Analysis and its elements

@inator3l.Mar-23J1-Mar-22o/ochangeRcasonforvariance
-Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder,s Equity O% N.A.

Retum on Equity ralio Net profits after ta\es _ Average. Preference Dividend Shareholder,s Equity

Inventory Tumover Cost ofgoods sold Average lnventory
ratio

Trade Receivable Gross credit sales - Average Trade
TumoverRatio sales retum Receivable

0.2'l

6.47

0.28

5.34

6.84

-50/.

40/o

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.
Trade Payable
Tumover Ratio

Net Capital Tumover
Ratio

Net Profit ratio

Debt Service
Coverage .atio

Retum on Fixed
Deposits

Retum on Mutual
Funds

Gross credit purchas€s - Average Tlade
purchase retum payables

6.36 6.01 6vo

Retum on Capital Eamings before
Employed ' interest and taxes

Net sales

Net Profit

-160/o

t40/o

-3v.

Net prolit after ta(es +
Non-cash operaling
exp€nses

Interest Income oo
Deposits with Banks
Net gain on Mutual
Fund Inveshnents

Curent assets -
Cufient liabilities

Net sales

Tangible Net Worth +
Total Debt + Defened
Tar Liability

Interest & Lease
Payments + Principal
Repa),m€nts

Average Investrnent
(Fixed Deposit)
Average Investrnent
(Mutual Fund)

9.88 9.51

2.18

0.13

0.33

2.6t

0.1l

0.34

6.06

5.16

5.92

4.93

N.A,

N.A.5%



SBL Sp€ri.lty CorliDss Privrte Liniled
CIN: U2423lCH194PTC015100

Inp.irD.-rt Rdirw
Ass€ts are tested for iDpaimeDl whenevcr thcrc ar€ any inie:nal or oftmal indicalors of impairment. ln'poir[rcot lcsl is perfom.d al the leld of €rch Cash

cenerartug Unit ('CGU') or Sroups ofCGUs wirhio tl'€ Corrpdry rt wlioh tt asscts arE EoritoEd for iDtcn l mamg€o.or pnpos€s, wilhin aD op€rsting segmenl.

Ite iEpairmeot asscssmed is bas€d or hider of r"lue in usc md \raluc nom sale crkddioff. Duirs lhe yenr, lhc tcstitrs did not rcsuft tu ary iDpairm.nt in lh€

oarrying amomt of olter ass€tr. The m€asurement of lhe c€sh gcner.lirg unils' vilu. in use is determircd bas€d otr fiff.cial platrs lbat harc bc.n uscd ty
nmrg.lD.{t for in&md pupos€s The plrtrning horizoo rcflccts thc,$,oftioa. for short to- mid-lcrm mrrlet conditions.

Key 
".rsinptims 

u!€d in \€luc-in-use crlculatioos:
- Opqztilg mardos (Finilss beforc ideresl md taxes)

- Crpital exFrdilures

40 Olher disclosure, required by sartute
(Anounis in t Lakhs)

parricutaE Yur.nded Ydr.nd.d

10.1

4.00

0_50

060

Shrutory rrditorr (edudirg GST)
(D Audir r@
(i0 Tax Audir Fe,
(in) Otur Certifioalior Charses
(iv) Reinbursem.nt of expeEes

Tolrl

3.00

0.50

0.t0
s.10 J.60

More tlan firr ye,Is

Toarl l€rle lirbililic! at 3l Mrrch
teisc liabiliti€s itroluded in the stalement of tuancial posilion a.I I Mfici
Cun€nt

257.62

644.71

138.77

42_45

226.44

720.19

l,61l.H 9E9.68

I,t96.7',7 989.68

163.11 12 4s
1,033.66 947.23

:10.1

ilIlrch3t,202J Ntrrch3l,2022
Interesl on lease liabilili€s
Amortizarion ofRight ro use ofassets 119 97 69 41

Exp€nses relarng ro srrcn tem reas€s 208'04 154-76

rotar #
:10.4 PayDent of Le{se.Lirbitirv

Pr.liculrrs Ye.r €Dded rte; .rd"d-
:I,:O:Z

Totat 136.26 ______iJr.r_

138.71

e^#-



Fin.n.i.l Aretr & FiMr.irl Li.biliti6

SBL Specirlly Co.tinSr Pri!.le Limiled
CtNr U24231CU1994PIC015100

4t
4t.t

r.i. CIryitrg f.ir
Apoutrt V.tu. Anout Vttu€

Fidnci.l As.& - Notr Cofi.nt
At Apmis.d Cst

(ii) otE 6,.trcid ars.ts
ToLl Nd Crr6t fi..!ci.l s..tt (.)

Ij!.tr.i.| ..r.t - c!....t
Ar fair vElu thrdeh mfit 6r lmc
(a) Lv.stn.dts iD Munul fiutd (kvel 2)
At Amdti&d colt

(ii) csh .nd cssh cqinval@ts
(iii) B.rk b6l@s olher d@ abovc
(iv) tIEs aDd &p6itj
(v) O{E fll]@El &aras
Tor.l CirMa liq*i.l .eat O)

Tot l ,Lr.ci.l.n .. (r + b)

Nob E rbl.ci.l lirhilii..

,rr * I E5.84 r11_X tn_x
185.8.1 185.8:1 117.96 t11.96

2,681.59

2,779.67

2,t39.52
970.62

2,683.59 2,452 39 2,452.39

1779.67 \342_55 \162j5
2.139.52 24a_4t Ua_41
e7o-62 t3479t tt17:t

E,?E73r EJr75l 6,695.55 6,69555

prticut.B _ es l' u"rct rt.:o:r liiiiiii i
crrrYins r"L"",.," a..,trlos 

-
li.bilitid - tror curr.trt

(i) Oth.r Findcial Liabilities

T.rrl Non Cu.r.nt Fi.rNi.t Li.bititi6 (r)

Fiurcirl ri.bilitic. - Curretrl

(iii) Orler are.ial lnbililies

Tohl Cu.rent riulcirt Lirbiliti4 (b)

Tot.l FiuNirl Li.bititi6 (. + b) r,73tf r t,azar fIFjJEE-

r8'1 2 : hput' .nh." t& q*Ld p'icd ircLd'd within lftl I rhal &. oh6.Mbt fq th. ,*i5 o lisbliry,.irh6 dndly( i.c. s Fc6) o idi*tiy ( i.., ddiv.d n@ an6)t vcl 3 : bputs fd tlE .eis or tiab nics rhat q. ,or ba&d o .bsdabt. mdta dlrs ( UnobsEble inpurs)

UnquoLd Equty Shdes
Unq@te.l Preferenc. StBres

Unq@t d Equiry Sbnres

Unquted Pref€r.nce St&es

k el I : QD1€d kices ( undjus&d) in &rive @kets fo idmiicat assrts d liabilities

p\
q#"t"Y-

4.00 4.00 4.75 415
l.oji e l.olle a47?i 94.123
r,0J7.66 r,o:z.eo iiiii---G

2,U3.99 2,0!-1q) 2,145.70 2.14510
488 05 488 05 459.10 459 70



SBL Soai.ly C.ai.!, t iv.& Umit .l
CIN: U248lCAl99tPIClrsl(r

,t2 F'lEi.r rit rl.r.ftlt obi..riv6 rd DotriB

TE .-nFiyt FiEiixl lmitl liibilis, o.nE 6r dEi!0liE, 6p.rE bo.hi!!! rd t & ,./.b16. Tlr ,Eo FrF.. of r[6c filrei, lirbihi! n b f|ll.e dr Cq.dr mt|Ig q0{.] Gpleu
TL Cquy t! EiE {)erl E* sd s td. @iv.blci rot$,,tdr-h d.F.iE.Dd c-l A cah cqdvrld. *ni, d- ddb,o itr as.lis.

'12.1 llEirr f,i* f.don
It.n'fii.ryc€dbrtarin,sdii'iir.ndljquiliryd*.,t c,.I.ry'! Bo(nof Ditu re 6. DDs@l drte drtt TE B dofDlEb ri rd.g6Ftri:tu--.s"r...r
otrha. tuti snid & ffi,!.d b.lo{

Mdd dtL i' ri. d* dn 6. Lir r.lD of fidrE cad los o{. 6tui:i il*rE* s lnlle bc.e o,d$e€,n rld f:co.i Mdc nrt dr.i6 rhr llE o,ri!& idd iL ril|( c@ rirr od
did Fir dJ. E r s .qdly Fie ri* , liquilit rii,. ..d @nodiry il,. Fl@in itu rfid.n ty drld ,irr iEh& llx .dt baenEl' da..i6.
Tt sirvit, errs n d.lolldriig di6 c,& b r[. D..ind. d ]I Mlrh 2022.d 3 t MrA2O2t

l.d3r 0rB, r'lr
F@ap rlEry riir ! th. dtL dn 6.6n vda d fl@ crd llo!. ofd.flolo Bil [d& hc.e oaduB6 ii -.Lis. ls o(dy d]Eq . TIE coqry ! 6!ouE b d. ri{ ofo[!r. i, f@q!rei3. le rd& Fl ily to rlE cdp.rDt opE i.* diyiri:6y r.y ofdid iElai.
Th L[.,irs nb& r.lrE foEisr .rrE.r nt troD fd.i.l idrtu s oa Mml tlt 1|DJ:

Tt rollorir! t Dk ldys tords. .u6., rnk from fi,u.in iB.tu'Er . o, Mr r,l.2e2l:

S@ry .rEt.bs. .,ti&l*. korGd n Siel6. of por rd ror:

rL forbria dsrifEra crn!. tu t v. h... .Dptid driit.b. yd.

r^R -Eif#!!4r#;*-
,r,

EUR t,r 5i 1r9i

5lli.'"-qt.* -!6iy ro.,enb Delbk clq. i. usDcr-.r ri4 ri6 .ll..16 Ei.n rdd 4v..!.d@r-ndtr{r cr.:etcdd.dri.ioe.cdd.Cer-yt!..61U..d!r.lr&b.t-rE irt fir

FjId d Flrit 6.to. h

Er.c d Flan 6d@ l.I

S-^=,-



Cildr i{ n d. rirld.l6epdy nddi6o6lidiGu&t6midntu(dlE6ir.{kdinebrfmi.lk{.Tf.C@,.ly!6r...dbcldnd'r6ui!oFritsdniit
(nsily !& Einbb) tld trm iB 6F;i! diritiq ircInilg dq6ia *i|f, hcll -d 6ftd idiulr, ed dlE fl,ed istlr@l.

Mov.6r i. .$.r.d .rdi. lo$ iloxr.. o' t . ft.cirrbk

TrD rouwirE 6bb aiq dd.iL in rBpoct of Fsulc o{l!\Er !ffi&n Em bD o!!,E rd r.p frc lfu

CraGcdt r*i.qC b, aA hiE -il did 5e Cqry'r.dlfrr.lit, a!o.'rsd..-!rrdriibe s.rlr* 
-td. 

Cr&Fliryoa.c-,ir-d h..na
rdbiEcldldt@d -nitviL.l sqlr [ri! edd..db EiErin(li. d Oi-.r!.*rE vd.. & Erd.t rih.ld b {D a Auid... S& d dEciE.cn-

At aa.drr- {Tr* A.dund

UD.r n!no.hr Sir ro Trelr. m [, Abor.12 od.\

FIII. nn'@! Dd .!tr d.lorit
Hir ri{ nm brllE6 uili bds..d illEin iGijmiG n i.hrs.d b! tL. C{rp.n}t r'@& @! d.r.@ D Brd.E tr d ii. Cmruy': !.liry brfu of uDl'! tudr rc Drd. mlr sitl
b.d.r o Fiod D@.8 ..d l quid fddt of bp firc Ad h6i*.M. tupuig.

Ii. .rnriy B,ird: it ri!! oa. rtaileo ol n!& Ein! . l,quid.y plmi.e rdl.

T1E Cepoyt obrdn! n b miM,i r bdlE b6r@ 6tuiq of f'Ddbs ind Oaibihy rd4!rh. e df b.nrN&rlt!, Eh 6.dit i.d WCDLf-iliB. Tls Cdlp.r, @!d lh.colfu o(nrt wirh
Epd bttr n ing i6d.6r rdtulud.d ir b h€ lol Tt .Fr-'] [E @ to.:!fiici..r wrcy d3,lE of nnfillrdr,.rr

Tn bbh hrrdx @n d. 'fuiy F.61. of rh. Cdr!4v 3 tl]$'.I hbtui: bn d o 6l,t@l 
'ndimr.d 

p.]rtfu.

Or demud td rhr I Dd.hr I .o 12 ror.r,

L CoqrydEI d6 i'ro rV lolg h co.!.r {iit i& ryrli* fd t dliis i! dndoddy prit .itl

466.12 2t93

- ,7a.19 U.lt 4t910
lx6

@

#ru
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SBL SD.cirttv Corti4s Prk te Limited
CIN: U2423lCHl94PTC0151m

43 Tr.mrclio witb Struck olf ComD.niec

RelrtioDlbip with th€ Struck ofi.omp.try'

held bv stuck offcomDaiv
outshndins balances (lo be sDecifi€d)

SNo Natu re of tramrctions with struclr_olI
admn.nv

Bslance oulitrDding es rl3l
M,r.h 2022

Rehtiotrship wiah the Stmck oficomprny,
ifrnv- ro h. dir.loidl

I
2
3
4
5

Investn€nts in s€cun!€s
Trade receivabl€s

Trade payables

Shares held by snrck offcompany
Other oulstanding balances (io be specified)

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

e,/



SBL Specidty Coetings Private Limited

CIN: U242JlCHl994PIC0l5l00

,l4 Cspitsl Risk menegement
Foi the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves atlributable to the equiry

holders ofthe parent. the primary objective ofthe company's caPital management is to ma\imise the shareholder value.

The Company has not availed any bonowings.

Less: cash and cash equivalents

Net debt

Total capital

Crpitel.trd n€t d€bt

Gearing mtio

-2,143.14 -251.85

9,259.09

In order to achieve rhis oveBll objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial coYenants

attached to the intercst-bearing loans and borrowings thal define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeling lhe financial covenants would

permit the bank to immedialely call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in lhe financial covenants of any interest-b€ting loans and

bonowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capilal during the years ended 3 I March 2022 and 3 I March 2023.

45 Balanc€ ofTmde receivables, Trade payables and advanc€s are subje.t to conl'irmatior and reconciliation, difference ifany, shall b€ accounted for on

such reconciliation. In the opinion ofthe management, lhe value on realization ofcurrent assets, Ioans & advances in the ordinary couse ofbusiness

would not be less than lhe amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet and provisions for all knotm liabilities has been made.

46 Previous year figures have been regroupe(V reananged, wherever considered oecessar) to conform to cunent year's classification.

Membership number: 0926? I

Place: Delhi
Date: 10.05.2023

\w
Date : 10.05.2023

ror S S. XOTHARI MEIITA & COMPANY
Chsrtered Accoutrtants

i 000756N

DIN : 03439076



SBL SPECIAITY COATINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAI STAIEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
MARCH 31,2023

1. Corporate Information

The company was incorporated as a Private Limited Company under the prol-isions of the companies

Act, 1956 on 27tli Septemb e17994. The Company is engaged in the Manufacturing of specialty coatings,

lacquers and thinners. The Company's manufacturing facilities are located at Derabassi, Puniab. The

registered office address of the company is located at SCF 321 Cabin no 5 Firct floor, IM.M Commercial

Complex Manimrjta-76070, Chandigarh.

l.l Basis of Pteparation of financial statements

1.1.1 Basis of Preparation and Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company for the period ended Nlatch 31,2023 have been prepated in
accordance with accounting principles generally zccepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act read witll the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended
from time to time.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except fot celtain financial
instruments and defned benefit plans which have been measutcd at fair values ot amortised cost at the
end of each repdrting period (refer accounting policies tegarding financial instruments). The Ind AS
financial statements ate presented in INR and all values are rounded to nearest lakhs in INR, except
when otherwise indicated.

Accounting policies have been consistendy applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is
inidally adopted or a revision ro an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use.

LLz Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
iudgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amouflts o-f r.rr..lr,.., explnses, assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of cootingent liabilities during and at tl-re end of the repotting period.
Although these estimates are based on the management's beit knowledge of curent .rr.it. unJ ,ctionr,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a matedal
adiustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods

1.2 Significant Accounting Policies fot the period ended March 31, 2023

7.2.1 Curent and Non-Current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as cuffent 01 nofl-cufient as per trre company,s normal
operating cycle and ot-het criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.
An asset is trading at curtent when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
Held primarily for the purpose of ftading
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the teporting petiod, ot

",.::1:'-:l'"t":t::1":::urrcss 
resricted ftom being excira"d;;;;;;; settle a liability fot atp:q

3( Hewb*r- 
13\#

least twelve after the period

\""-



SBL SPECIAITY COATINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAI STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
MARCH 31,2023

Al1 other assets ate classifi.ed as flon-cufferlt.

A liabiJity is cuttent when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of tmding
- It is due to be settled in within twelve months aftet the reporting petiod, or

- Thete is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of liabil.ity for at least twelve months aftet

the reporting pedod.

Al1 other liabi.lities ate classified as non-cufient.

Deferted tax assets and liabilities are classified as flon-cuffeflt assets and liabi.lities.

Based on the natue of products and the time between the acquisition of assets fot ptocessing and theil
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascettained its operating cycle as 12 months
for the purpose of current- noncurrent classification of assets and liabilities.

1.2.2 FoteignCurencies
Items included in the financial statements of tl-re Company ate measured using the curency of the
pdmary economic environment in which the Company opelates (the functional curtency'). The financial
statements ate presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company's functional and presentation
curtency.

Transactions in foteign curencies are initially recorded in by the Company at spot rates at the functional
currency spot late (i.e INR) at the date the transaction fust qualifies for recogrrition. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional cufiency spot rates of
exchange ar rhe reporting date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses tesulting from the settlement of ttansactions in foteign currencies and
ftom the ttanslation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cur.icie. at year end
exchange mtes are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign curency are translated
:thg 9t exchaoge rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Nofl-mofletary Item. thrt t measured at
fair value in {"*b" curtency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value wasdetermined The gain ot loss arising on t an.laion of non-monetary items measured at fair value isteated 

.in T:-de the recognition of the gain or ross on the change in fafu vd", ;i the item (i.e.,translation differences on items whose fair i,alue gain or loss is teclgnised in other comprehensiveincome (ocr) or profit or ross are arso recognis.a in"oct ot profit or roJs, re.p".a...g. 
--'

L2.3 Fait Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell afl asset or paid to ftansfer a Jiabijity in an orderlytransaction berween market participants at the measruement d"r.'. r1r;-fr";;; -ll-*j-.r, i. trr.aon the presumption that the transairion to sen the asset ot transfer tt . Luuiury iuto;il;;.r,
:l fn the pnicipal market for the u.r.t o, liuUiilty, o,b) In the absence of a principal matka, io tt . .'o.t 

"arrantageous 
market for the asset or liability

The principalnor th", 
1ro* 1dl*a*.ous 

market must be accessible by the Company.



SBL SPECIALTY COATINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAI STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
MARCH 31,2023

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market patticipants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in tlreir best economic
interest.

A fair value measuremeflt of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by seliing it to another
market paticipant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuadon techniques that are apptopriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient d,atz are av lzble to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable rnputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fait value is measured ot disclosed in the financial statements are
categotised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

a) Level 1 
- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active matkets for identical assets or liabilities

b) Level 2 
- 

Valuation techniques fot which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is direcdy or indirecdy observable
c) Level 3 

- 
Valuation techniques fot which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statemeflts on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether ftansfers have occurred between levels in the hieratchy by re-asi.r.ing cut.go[s;tion
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value -.rr*"-..rt ^, 

a *hol"e) at the end of
each teporting period.

For the purpose of fait value disclosutes, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the natute, characteristics and dsks of th. ".r.t or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

7.2.4 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-te,.
deposits 

.wi&- 
an original maturity of tluee months oi less, which are subiect ,o un io.igoin."nt risk ofchanges in value.

1.2.5 Ptopery, Plant and Equipment

Prop:q,plant and equipment and. capital wotk in progress ate carried at cost of acquisition, on cuffentcost basis less accumurated depreciation 
"od 

ac.un-rlai.d impairmeng if ,ry. co;;:o;;ir", p*.h"r"price and ditectly atttibutable iost of bri"grrg ,t . 
"rr", 

io ii, working condition for t1,e intended use.Any ttade discounts and tebates, are a.au.'tei h arnving arthe p*.h'u." pi... so.t .ort.ua". tt.cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment onf, bor.o*iog cosrs for long-,.r.],r-.o,.,r,*.oonprojects if the recognition criteria are -.,. ttir.hio.ry .pur.. *hi.h Jan be used 
"rrrii, ."."..,i.r rri nan item of fixed asset and whose.se is expected ,o L" L.g,rt", ate capitalised and depreciated over theusefi'rl life of the pnncipal .item of the releJant asses. '$flh;;.ignfi.r", parts of prant and equipment are

:::tr.il:..ff:*:*,":':y::::p:ryr. *;+;i.:.,n1- .Ip"*"r^y'i',."i'J,,'t.o .p..in
Xfl [?:"H',Xi"#tJr::r:'i"p"ti'oo-'i'l..*ffi ,;'"'"#i"1"ild::.TH;t&T

l t A l , - -rTf", as a replacement if the tecognition. !.itqria L satisfied. AII otherP.\
,[(-4e")i
.iA #,



SBL SPECIALTY COATINGS PRTVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
MARCH 31,2023

repair and maintenance costs are tecognised in profit ot loss as incurred. The present value of the

expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective
asset if the recogn-ition ctiteria for a provision ate met.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any signiEcant part initially tecognised is de-tecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic beoefits ate expected ftom its use or disposal. Any gain ot
loss arising on de-tecognition of the asset (calcuJated as ttre difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement \vhen the asset is derecognised.
Depreciation is ptovided on Straight line method over the usefrrl lives of property, plant and equipment
as estimated by management. Pursuant to Notification of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2073
depreciation is provided prorata basis on straight line method at the mtes determined based on estimated
usefi.rl lives of property, plant and equipment whete applicable, prescribed undet Schedule II to the
Companies Act 2073 with the exception of the following item fot which usefirl lives as estimated by the
management based on technical evaluation ate different ftom those specified in aforesaid Schedule II.
o Plant and machinery: 15 yeats to 20 years
o Leasehold Building is amortized on a straight line ovet the tenure of tespective leases or usefi.rl
life of asset as assbssed by the management whichever is lowet.
The tesidual values, usefirl lives and metlods of depteciation of ptoperty, plant and eq,ipment are
teviewed at each Enancial year end and adiusted ptospectively, if approptiate.

1.2.6 IntaagibleAssets

Intangible Assets ate tecogaized only when futue economic benefits adsing out of the assets flow to ttre
entelprise and ate amortised over t}leir usefirl life mnging ftom 3 to 6 years. Intangible assets acquired
separately ate measuted otr initial tecognition at cost. Follo\ring initial recognition, inangible assets are
catried at cost less accumulated amortizatioo aod accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intemally
generated intangible assets, excluding crpitahzed development costs, are not capitalized and are chatged
to Statement of Profit and Loss for the yeat during which such expenditure is incurred.

L2.7 Impafument of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whethet thete is an indication that an asset rny be
impaired. If aoy indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amounl An asset's

recovetable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-genetati''g uniCs (CG[I) net selling ptice and its
value in use. The tecoverable amount is deterrnined fot an individual asse! unless the asset does not
gefletate cash inflows that are latgely independent of tlose ftom othet assets or groups of assets. Whete
the carrying amount ofan asset or CGU exceeds its tecovetable amoung ttre asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recovetable amounl

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that teflects cureflt matket assessments of the time value of money and the dsks

specific to the asset. In detetmining net selling price, receot Eurket transactions are taken into accoung if
available. Ifno such ftansactions caf, be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

L2.8 Inventories

Finished goods and Wotk-in-ptocess are stated at ttre lower of cost and estimated net realisable value.

Cost of inventories constitutes direct materials and labout and a""""$ry t)?
#y

ovetheads
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Raw matedals, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and estimated net realisable
value. Cost is determined on weighted average basis. However, materials and other items held fot use in
the production of inventories are not written dowo below cost if the fnished products in which they will
be incoqporated are expected to be sold are at or above cost.

Provision is recognised fot damaged, defective or obsolete stocks where necessary. Cost of all
inventories is determined using weighted average method of valuation.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

1.2.9 Revenue and Other Income

Revenue from conftacts with customers is recognized when contol of the goods ot services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideradon to which the Company expecs
to be entided in exchange for those goods or services. Payments from customers fot the goods
transferred ate normally received within 30-60 &ys.

The Company earns revenue from the conttact with custome$ in the following categories:

Sale ofgoods
Revenue towards satisfaction of a petformance obligation is measured at the amount of tansaction price
(net of vadable consideration) allocated to that pelformance obligation. The transaction ptice ofgoods
sold and sen ices tendeted is net ofvariable consideration on account ofvarious discounts aod schemes

offered by the company as part of the coflttact.

Intercst income'
Intetest income is recognized on time propofiion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and

the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head 'Othet Income' in the Statement

of Ptofit and Loss.

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognized when ihe dght to receive payment is established, which is genetally when

shateholders approYe the same.

Export Incentives
Revenue accuing ofl Export incentive in the form of Duty Dtawback and any othet scheme is

recognized in the statement of profit and loss on teceipt basis.

Insurance & othet Claims
The tevenue in respect of claims is recogoized when no significant uncertaintF exists with tegard to the

amount to be tdalized / recovered and the ultimate tealization theteof.

1.2.10 Govemmetrt Grants and Subsidies

Govetoment grants ald subsidies are recognised when thete is teasonable assuraflce that the Company

#\
k]w

will with the conditions attached to them and the grants/subsidy teceived.
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'When the grant or subsidy ftom the Govetnment dates to revetrue, it is deducted ftom the related
expense on a systematic basis in the Statement of Ptofit and Loss over the period necessary to match
them with the telated costs, which ttrey ate intended to compeflszte. When the gtans relates to an asset,
it is recognised'as income in equal amounts ovet the expected usefirl life of the related asset.

V/hen the Company teceives gnnts of non-moneta{r assets, the asset and the grant ate recotded at fair
value amounts and released to pro6t ot loss over the expected usefirl life in a pattem of consumption of
the benefit of the undedying asseq i.e. by equal afifual irNt-lrnents. Wheo loans or sitnilrt assistance ate
provided by govemments or telated institutions, with an interest mte below the curent applicable
hatket rate, the effect of this favoutable interest is tegatded as a government gtant. The Ioan or
assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value of the ptoceeds received. The loan is
subsequendy measured as per the 

"gg6unr;"g 
policy applicable to financial liabilities.

1.2.11 Employee Benefits

I. Defiaed Contribution Plan

^. Provident Fund
Contributions in respect of Employees are made to the Fund administered by the Regional Provident
Fund Commissiooet as Per ttre provisions of Employees' Ptovident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions
Act, 1952 and ate chatged to Statetnent of Proft and Loss as and when selices ate rendered by
employees. The Company has no obligation 61f,er thrn the conttibution payable to the Regional
Provident fund.

II. Defined Benefit Plan

a. Gtatuity
Every employee who has completed five yeats or more of serrice is entitled to Gratuity as per tie
provisions of The Payrnent of Gratuity Act, 1972. Retirement Gratuity fot employees, is funded through
a scheme of Life Insurance Cotporatioo of India. The costs of ptoviding binehts under this plan ie
detemined on the basis of actuarial valuation using the projected unit creait method at each yiar-end.
Actuarial gains/losses ale irnmcdiately recognised L tetain a eamings tlrough Othet Comprehensive
Income in the period in which they occut. Re-neasuremetrt. ,"" oo1 re-chslified to profit or loss io
subsequent pedods. The excess / shortfall in the fair value of the plan assets over the'ptesent value of
the obligation calculated as per actuarial methods as at balaoce shelt &tes is tecognised- as a gain / lossin the Statement of Profit 

^9 k:... 
-A"y3.set 

atising out of this calculation is lirrited to the p"ast seroice
cost plus the present value of available tefunds and riduction in future contributions.

b. Ptovident Fund
contdbutions to Provident ald Family Pension Fund is made in accordance with the provisions of thePtoyident Fund Act, 1952 and is treated as revenue expenditure.

UI. Long Term Co,npensated Absences

*:,3:*l*?r:::::*:"1 t_eave to the extent such leave are canied forward as lons_term) r(,ug-rcEl]

::*.r:: i::"}_r-:: f::y:r-nent qurposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for
Y,:10,,::3'--1'I111'.,,11'y"o:l "ii"g *. ptoiected';a;';;;;;;;;;;;-.#l;Ji
ffYl.** are immediatelv taken to"the #,"...', "f;r;,--Jl;.*r;;;.'o"i-I*"o.a. rrr.Compqny presents tle leave as a cutent liabitty in the balince sheet, to it does not have an

f(r*
\ %e

unconditional rj defet its for 12 months aftet t}le Company has
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the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the
same is presented as non-curent liability.

1.2.12 Taxes on Income

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Cuttent Income Tax
Current income-tax is measured 2t the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance
with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax )urisdictions
where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws r.r."J to .o*f.rt. the an]ount are those tlat are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

N1T1g"-.11 P-efpdically evaluates the positions taken in the tax retums with respect to the situations in
which applicable tax tegulations are subject to interpretation and establis^hes ptovisions whete
appropnate.

Defered Tax
Defened tax is provided using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carq,ing amounts in the Ind AS financial statements at the
repotting date. Defered income tax is not accounted for ifit adses from initial recognition ofan asset or
liability in a transaction othet than a business combination that at the time of th! ttansaction affects
neither accounting ptofit not taxable profit (tax loss).

Deferred income tax is detetmined using tax tates and laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related defered income
tax asset is realised ot the defered income tax liability is settled.

fiefered tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporari, differences and unused tax losses only if
it is ptobable that futute taxable amounts will be available to utilise those tempotary diffetences and
losses.

The catrying amount of defened tax assets is reviewed at each repoting date and reduced to the extent
9'-t fo ,_t no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be urruilabl. to allow all or patt of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets ate re-assessed at each reporting date
and ate recognised to the extent that it has become ptobable that future taxable profits will allow the
defened tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax and liabilities are measuted at the tax rates that ate expected to apply in the year when asset
is,tealised 

-or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted orsubstantively enacted at the reporting date.

Defeted tax assets and liabilities 
1e -offsqt 

when thete is a legally enfotceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate*to the .rm. t""utiolr, ,utt ority. c*r.rt t^*assets and tax liabilities ate offset whete the entity has a legally enfotceable right to off# and intends
either to setde dl. a net basis, or to rearise the asset and settre"ttre tiau;tity sim"rtir*rrry. 

---

Cuttent and deferted tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to tl-re extent that it relates to iteftsrecognised in,other cornprehensive income or dtectly in equity. ln tJlis
rncome or dirgcdy in equity, respectivily.

W,

p,\
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other
is also recognised in
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Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing diffetences between taxable income and accounting

income originati''g during the culent year and reversal of timing diffetences fot the eadier yeats.

Defered tax is measuted s5ing the tax rates and the Ax laws enacted ot substantively enacted at the

reporting date.

Minirn 'rn Alternate Tax

Minimum Altemate Tax credit is tecognized, as an asset only when and to the extent thete is convincing

evidence that the gtoup will pay nonnal income tax during ttre specifed period. In the year in which the
MAT ctedit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset in accordance with the tecommendations
contained in guidance note issued by tle Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is

created by way of a credit to tle Statement of Profit and Loss and shosm as MAT Credit Entidement
undet Loans & Advances. The gtoup teviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the
carrying arnount of MAT Credit Entidement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the
effect that gtoup will pay normal Income Tax during the specified period.

1.2.13 Provisions and Contingencies

A ptovision is tecognized when an entelprise has a present obliftion (egal ot constructive) as a result of
Past eveflq it is ptobable tlat ari outflow of resources embodying economic benefis will be requited to
setde the obligation and a teliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of pro6t and loss.

If the effect of th. ti-" o"lo" of money is 11u1grial, provisions are discounted using a curtent pte-tax rate
that reflecs, when apptopriate, the risks specific to the liabi.lity. !7hen discounting is used, the increase in
ttre provision due to ttre passage of time is recognised as a Enance cost

The Company recotds a provision for decommissioning costs for its certain manufactudng facilities.
pq66mmis5iening costs ate ptovided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using
estimrted cash flows and ate tecogr sed as pat of the cost of the particulat asset. The cash flows ati
discouoted at a orftent Pte-tax rate that reflecs the risks specific to the decommissiooing liability. The
,1urfuding of the discount is expensed as inc"r'ed and tecogtused in the statement ofprofit and loss as a
finance cost. The estimated futuie costs of decommissioning are teviewed "-r^lly and adiusted as
appropriate' Changes in the estimated futute costs ot in the discount rate appled are added to ot
deducted ftom ttre cost of the asset.

A contingent liability is a possible eHigation that arises ftom past events whose existence will be
confirned by the occurtence or non-occurterce of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
conftol of ttre Cl.hFany ot a ptesent 6$ig"tioo that is not tecognized because it is not ptobabie that an
outflow of resorrces will be requited to settle the obligation. The Company does 

^not 
tecognize a.

contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

1.2.14 Bonowing Costs

Borrowing Costs include interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred
arising ftom foreign curency borrowings to the extent they are regatded
borrowing costs. Discount on Commercial papem is amortised orr., th.

and exchange differences
as an adiustment to the
tenor of the undedying

ffi
instrument. ing Costs, allocated to and utilised fot quali$,ing to the period from
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colnmencemeni of activities relating to construction / development of the qualifting asset up to the date
the asset is readv fot its intended use is added to the cost of the assets. Capitalisation of Borrowing Costs
is suspended and chatged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active
development activity on the quali$'ing assets is interrupted. AII other borrowing costs ate expensed in
the period they occur.

1.2.15 Eamings per Share

Basic Earnings per Shale is calculated by dividing the net pto6t ot loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholden by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Fot
the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss fot the period attdbutable to
equity shateholdets and the weighted avetage number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted
fot the effects of all dilutive potential equity shates.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the petiod and for all pedods
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shates, other than the conversion of potential equiq.
shares that haVe changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a coresponding change in
resor,]fces.

L.2.16 F inancial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives dse to a financial asset of one entity and a Enancial
liability ot equity instrument of another entity.

A. Financial assets
i. Initial tecognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initialiy at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or 1oss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.

ii. Subsequent measutement
For purposes ofsubsequent measulement, financial assets are classified in two categories:
a. Debt instruments at amortised cost
b. Equity instruments mcasured at fair value through other comprehensive income FVTOCI

Debt instrumeots at amortised cost other than derivative contracts
A 'debt instrument'is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
o The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
conftactual cash flows, and
. Contactual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and intetest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequefldy measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate @,IR) met-hod. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount ot
ptemium on acquisition and fees or costs t}zt are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses adsing from impairment are tecognised in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to tade and other teceivables.

De-tecbgnition
p:\
k]w
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A flnancial asset (or, whete applicable, a pzrt of a financial asset ot part of a. Company of similar Enancial
assets) is pdmadly derecognised when:
r The dghts to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
o the Company has transfered substantially all the risks and rewatds of the asset

iv. Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected ctedit loss @,CL) model for
measutement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit tisk
exposure:
o Financial assets that are debt instrumeflts, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposiqs, trade receivables and bank balance

'fhe Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Ttade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not requLe the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises imparment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each teporting date, right
fiom its initial recognition.

Lifetrme ECL are the expected credit losses tesulting ftom all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. ECL is the diffetence between all contractual cash flows that ate due to the
Company in accotdance with the coflftact and all the cash flows that the entity expects to rece.ive,
discounted at the original EIR. V/hen estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to considet:

. All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and
similat options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the
expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, theo the entity is required to use
the remaining conftactual term of the financial instrument
o Cash flows ftom the sale of collateral held ot othet ctedit enhancements that are integral to the
cofltactual teffis

As a pmctical expedient, the Company uses a ptovision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The ptovision matrlr is based on its historically observed default
lates ovet the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forwardlooking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates ate updated and chaoges in the fonvardJooking
estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in tlre statement of profrt and loss @&L). This amount is reflected under the head 'other
expenses' in the P&r. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described
below:
I Financial assets measuted at amortised cosl ECL is ptesented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral
part of the measufemenr of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the n", aorqLg
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce impairment allowance
from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments
oo the basis of shared ctedit risk characteristics with the obiective 

'of 
facihtadng z,,,

designed to enable s-igrificant increases in ctedit risk to be identi.fied on a timely basi,#!Eqk\
lJ V\
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B. Financialliabitties
i. Initial tecognition and measutement
All financial liabiljties are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, investment in subsidiaties and joint velrtures, net of direcdy attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and ot-h.er payables, loans and borowings including
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee cofltracts and derivative Enancial instruments.

ii. Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilitres depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through ptofit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include derivatives, financial iiabilities held fot
tading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as 

^t 
f^b value through profi.t or loss.

Financial llrbilities are classifred as held for tading if they ate incured for the purpose of repurchasing in
the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationslups as defined by Ind AS 109.

Sepatated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for tradrng unless they are designated as

effective hedging mstrumenrs.

Gains or losses on liabilities held fot ttading ate tecognised in the proEt or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial tecognition at fafu value thtough profit or loss are designated
as such at the initial date of tecognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. Fot liabilities
designated as trVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are tecognized
in OCI. These gins/ loss are not subsequendy ransfered to P&L. Howevet, the Company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in
the statement of pro6t or loss.

Loans and borowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings ate subsequendy measuted at amotised
cost using the EIR nethod. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are

derecognised as well as through the EIR amottisation ptocess.

Amotised cost is calculated by taking into accouflt any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amotisation is included as finance costs in the

statemeflt of profit and loss.

De-recognition
A Enancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is dischatged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liabiJity is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially

diffetent terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange ot
modification is ffeated as the de-recognition of the original liabiJity and the recognition of a new liabiliry.

The difference in the tespective carrying amounts is recogmsed in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of fi nancial instruments
Financial assets and Enancial Iiabilities are offset and the net amount is teported in the balance sheet if
there is a curendy enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and t!2giry,qintention to
setde ofl a net basis, to teali.se the assets and setde the liabilities simultaneously #T*s

w#e-"*-
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1.2.17 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows ate tepotted usrng the indirect method, whereby prof,t for the period is adiusted fot the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts ot Payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segtegated.

1.2.18 Significant accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

In the process of app\ing the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
.jti-ul:t, assumptions and judgements which have significant effect on the amounts recognized in th!
Enanci.al statemenr:

A. Income taxes

Judgment of the N{anagement is tequLed for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferrcd
tax assets and liabilities. The company reviews at each balance sheet datc the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ ftom actual ourcome which could lead to significant
adjustment to the amounts reported in the standalone finaflcial statements

B. Contingencies

Judgment of the Management is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in
respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the compafly as it is not possible to predict the
outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

C, Allowance fot uucollected accounts receivable and advances
Trade receivables do not cany any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when
maoagement deems them not collectible. Impairment is made on ECL, which are the present value of
the cash shotfall over the expected life of the financial assets.

D. Fait Value Measurement of Financial Instruments.
V/hen the fait values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken
fiom observable matkets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degtee of judgment is required
in establishing fair values. Judgments include considetations of inputs such as liquidity dsk, credit risk
and volztility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the teported fair value of financial
instruments.

1.2.19 Leases

Ind AS 1L6 Leases
A contract is, or cofltains, a lease if the coflftact conveys the dght to control the use of an identified asset
fot a pedod of time in exchange for consideration.

ComFany as a lqssee
The Company accounts fot each lease component within the contract as
lease components of tle conuact and allocates the considetation in

a lease separately ftom non-
the to each lease
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compoltent on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease comPonent and the aggtegate

stand-alone ptice of the non-lease compooents.

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its dght to use ttre undetlying asset for the lease

term at the lease commencemeflt date. The iost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall

comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adiusted for any.Iease Payments

made at or before ttre commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs

incured and an estimate of costs to be incured by the lessee in dismanding and removing the

undedying asset at restoring the undetlying asset ot site on which it is located. The dght-of-use assets is

subsequently meastred at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any

and adjusted for any remeasutement of tle lease liabiJity. The dght-of-use assets is depreciated using the

straight-line method from the commencement date over the shortet of lease term or usefirl life of right-
of-use asset. The estimated usefi.rl lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those
of ptoperty, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever thete is any
indication that their caffying ahounts may not be tecoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments t}lat are not paid at
tl-re commencement date of tle lease. The lease paJrnents are discounted using the intetest rate implicit
in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the
Company uses incremental bortowing mte. For leases with reasonably similar chatacteristics, the
Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the inctemental borrowing rate specific to the lease
or the incemental borowing rate fot the portfolio as a whole. The lease payhents shall include fixed
Da)'ments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exetcise price of a purchase option where
the ComFany is tBasonably certain to exetcise tlat option and payments of penalties fot terminating the
lease, if the lease tenn reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is
subsequendy remeasuted by incteasi''g the carrying amount to teflect interest on the lease liability,
reducing the carrying amount to teflect the lease pa).rnents made and remeasuting the carrling amount to
teflect any reassessmeflt ot lease modifications ot to reflect revised in-substaoce fixed lease payments.
The company tecognises ttre amount of the te-measutement of lease liability due to modification as an
adiustrnent to the dght-of-use asset and stxtement of ptofit and loss depending upon tlle natute of
modification. V/hete t}le catrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a
fiuttrer reduction in tlle measutement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining
amount of the te-measurement in statement of pto6t and loss.

'Ihe CohFany has elected not to apply the tequirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all
assets that have a lease term of 72 months ot less and leases fot which the undedying asset is of low
value. The lease payments associated with these leases are tecognized as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Company as a lgssot
At the inception of the lease tlle Company classifies each of its leases as eithet an operating lease or a
finance lease. The Company recognises lease payments teceived under opetating leases as income on a

straight-Iine basis over the lease tetm. In case of a finance lease, finance income is tecogrrised over the
lease term based on a pattem teflecting a constant periodic rate of retum on the lessor's net investment
in the lease. When the Compaoy is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease
and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with tefetence to the right-
of-use asset adsing ftom the head lease, not with teference to the undetlying asset. If a head lease is a

short-telm lease to which the Company applies the exemption described
lease as an operating

ifies the sub-
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The Company.evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS
116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in
assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, togethet with both
periods coveted by an option to extend the lease, if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and periods covered by an option to teminate the lease if the Company is teasonably certain not
to exetcise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercisc an option to
extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all televant facts and
circumstances that cleate an economic incentive fot the Company to exercise the option to extend the
lease, or not to exetcise the option to terminate the lease.

The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease. The
discount rate is generally based on the incremental bortowing rate specific to the lease bcing evaluated ot
fot a portfolio of leases with similar chatactedstics.

As per our report of even date attached
For S S Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number: 000756N

Vijay
Partner
Membership number: 09267 |

Place: Delhi
Date: 10.05.2023

X'or and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SBL Specialty Coatings Private Limited

"U^^",Anil-Kumar Mehrotra

DIN:03439076

(Chief Officer)
Place: Chandigarh
Date: 10.05.2023

P.\
;( rueuSf,nrr lE\# (Managing Director)


